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such other mitigating factors as may be appropriate
to seek equity among those who participate in this
program.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
this day of September in the year of
our Lord nineteenihundred seventy-four, and of the
Independence of the United States of America the

one hundred and ninety-ninth.




FACT SHEET

The President has today issued a Proclamation and Executive
Orders establishing a program of clemency for draft evaders

and military deserters to commence immediately. This program

has been formulated to permit these individuals to return to
American society without risking criminal prosecution or in-
carceration for qualifying offenses if they acknowledge their
allegiance to the United States and satisfactorily serve a period
of alternate civilian service.

The program is designed to conciliate divergent elements of
American society which were polarized by the protracted period
of conscription necessary to sustain United States activities
in Vietnam. Thus, only those who were delinquent with respect
to required military service between the date of the Tonkin
"Gulf Resolution (August 4, 1964) and the date of withdrawal of
United States forces from Vietnam (March 28, 1973) will be
eligible. Further, only the offenses of draft evasion and
prolonged unauthorized absence from military -service (referred
to hereinafter as desertion) are covered by the program.

Essential features of the program are outlined below.

1. Number of Draft Evaders. There are approximately 15,500
draft evaders potentially eligible. Of these some 8,700 have
been convicted of draft evasion. Approximately 4,350 are under
indictment at the present time, of which some 4,060 are listed
as fugitives. An estimated 3,000 of these are in Canada. A
further 2,250 individuals are under investigation with no pend-
ing indictments. It is estimated that approximately 130 persons
are still serving prison sentences for draft evasion.

2. Number of Military Deserters. Desertion, for the purposes
of this program, refers to the status of those members of the
armed forces who absented themselves from military service
without authorization for thirty days or more. During the
Vietnam era it is estimated that there were some 500,000 in-
cidents of desertion as so defined. Of this 500,000 a number
were charged with offenses other than desertion at the time
they absented themselves. These other offenses are not within
the purview of the clemency program for deserters. Approximately
12,500 of the deserters are still at large of whom about 1,500
are in Canada. Some 660 deserters are at present serving sen-
tences to confinement or are awaiting trial under the Uniform
Code of Military Justice.

3. Unconvicted Evader. Draft evaders will report to the U.S.
Attorney for the district in which they allegedly committed
their offense. !

Draft evaders participating in this program will be required to.
make a written agreement with the U.S. Attorney to perform
alternate service, under the auspices of the Director of
Selective Service. The alternate service will constitute an
acknowledgement of allegiance to the United States.

The duration of alternate service will be 24 months, but may
be reduced for mitigating factors as determined by the U.S.
Attorney. v

The Director of Selective Service will have the responsibility
to find alternate service jobs for those who report. Upon

- satisfactory completion of the alternate service, the Director
will issue a certificate of satisfactory completion to the
individual and U.S. Attorney, who will either move to dis-
miss the indictment if one is outstanding, or agree not to
press possible charges in cases where an indictment has not
been returned.
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If the draft evader fails to perform the agreed term of alternate
service, the U.S. Attorney will be free to, and in normal circum-
stances will, resume prosecution of the case as provided in the
terms of the agreement.

Aliens who fled the country to evade the draft will be ineligible
to participate in the program.

4. Unconvicted Military Absentees. Military absentees who have
no other pending charges may elect to participate in the program.
Military deserters will apply by writing t :
a. ARMY - Commanding Off cer, Fort Benjamin Harrison,
Indiana 46216 :

b. NAVY - Chief of Naval Personnel, Arlington Annex,
Arlington, Virginia 20370

c. AIR FORCE - Commanding Officer, Personnel Center,
Randolph Air Force [Base, Texas 78148

f
d. MARINE CORPS - Commandant, U. S. Marine Corps,
Arlington Annex, Arlingtpn, Virginia 20380

Those who make such an election will be required to execute a
reaffirmation of allegiance and pledge to perform a period of
alternate civilian service. Those against whom other charges under
the Uniform Code of Mllltary Justice are pending will not be eli-
gible to part1c1pate in the program until these other charges are
disposed of in accordance with the law. Participants in the pro-
gram will be separated with an undesirable discharge. Although
these discharges will not be coded on their face in any manner,
the Veterans Administration will be advised that the recipients
were discharged for willful and persistent unauthorized absence.
They will thus not be eligible for any benefits provided by the
Veterans Administration.

The length of required alternate civilian service will be
determined by the parent Services for each individual on a case-
by-case basis. The length of service will be 24 months, but may
be reduced for military service already completed or for other
mitigating factors as determined by the parent Service. After
being discharged each individual will be referred to the
Director of Selective Service for assignment to prescribed

work. Upon certification that this work has been satis-
factorily completed, the individual may submit the certification
to his former Service. The Service will then issue a special new
type of discharge -=_a-~Clemency Discharge =-- which will be sub-
stituted £ awarded undesirable discharge.
lemency Discharge shall not bestow entitlement
ered by the Veterans Administration.

{;; 5. Alternate Civilian Service. Determining factors in selecting
suitable alternate service jobs will be:
“Zzos a) National Health, Safety or Interest.
-
\\_fﬁ% ! A(b) Noninterference with the competitive labor market. The

pplicant cannot be assigned to a job for which there are
more numerous qualified applicants than jobs available.

of living to the applicant reasonably comparable to the
standard of living the same man would enjoy if he were
entering the military service.

f//[c) Compensation. The compensation will provide a standard
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/ ___—{d) Skill and talent utilization. Where possible, an
applicant may utilize his special skills,

In prescribing the length of alternate service in individual
cases, the Attorney General, the Military Department, or the
Clemency Board shall take into account such honorable service
as an individual may have rendered prior to his absence,
penalties already paid under the law, and such other mitigating
factors as may be appropriate to seek equity among participants
in the program.

6. No Grace Period. There will not be a grace period for those
outside the country to return and negotiate for clemency with the

option of again fleeing the jurisdiction. All those re-entering

the United States will have fifteen days to report to the appro-
priate authority from the date of their re-entry. However, this
fifteen day period shall not extend the final date of reporting

of January 31, 1975 as set forth in the Proclamation.

7. Inquiries. Telephone inquiries may be made to the following
authorities:

Evaders: (202) 739-4281
Military Absentees: ;4;’b
\/ ot v MM

;%2PZL “%%wyékr, 27 . v

.7/{/7




UNCONVICTED DRAFT EVADER AND MILITARY ABSENTEE

DRAFT EVADER MILITARY ABSENTEE
Report to United States Attorney Report as prescribed by
where offense was committed the military department

Awéﬁ&gf//,Concerned

2ot D
6;79 Oath of Allegiance to
United States

Agree with U. S. Attorney to ~Agree with the concerned
perform 24 months alternate _ Military Department to
Service or less based upon ) perform 24 months alternate
‘mitigating circumstances (i 4“'4Vﬁ;““;“~/ service or less based
&5/jgzbaﬁa¢c, upon mitigating
/ J circumstances
Perform alternate service under Upon request, Military
the auspices of the Director of ) Department forgoes prose-
Selective Service cution, and issues

undesirable discharge

Director of Selective Service Perform alternate service
issues certificate of satis- under the auspices of the
factory completion of alter- Director of Selective

nate service Service

Recelpt by United States Attorney Director of Selective Service
of a certificate of satisfactory issues certificate of satis-
completion of alternate service : factory completion of alter-

nate service

Dismissal of indictment or Receipt of a certificate of

dropping of charges satisfactory completion of
alternate service by the
concerned Military Department

- |

Clemency Discharge substituted

///a/ for undesirable discharage
OW ’ ! -

CONVICTED DRAFT EVADER AND MILITARY ABSENTEE

DRAFT EVADER MILITARY ABSENTEE

Apply to Clemency Board ' Apply to Clemency Board
Clemency Board may recommend Clemency Board may recommend
clemency to the President clemency to the President,

in the form of substituting
a clemency discharge for a
punitive or undesirable
discharge




DRAFT EVADER

Clemency Board may condition
recommendation of clemency on
period of alternate service

President may grant clemency

MILITARY ABSENTEE

Clemency Board may condition
recommendation of clemency on
period of alternate service

President may grant clemency,
in the form of substituting
a clemency discharge for a
punitive or undesirable
discharge

|
i
|
|
b
i
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EXECUTIVE ORDER

DELEGATION OF CERTAIN FUNCTIONS VESTED IN THE
PRESIDENT TO THE DIRECTOR OF SELECTIVE SERVICE

By virtue of the authority vested in me as
President of the United States, ae=CoRirRrereT—rar—tie [
and pursuant to my powers under Article II, Sections 2
and 3 of the Constitution,vand under Section 301 of
Title 3 of the United States Code, it is hereby ordered
as follows:

Section 1. The Director of Selective éérvice
is designated and empowered, without the approval,
ratification or other action of the President, under
such regulations as he may prescribe, to establish,
implement, and administer the-program of alternate
service authorized in the Proclamation announcing a
program for the return of Vietném era draft evaders
and military deserters.

Sec. 2. Departments and agencies in the Executive
branch shall, upon the request of the Director of
Selective Service, cooperate and assist in the im-
plementation or administration of the Director's
duties under this Order, to the extent permitted by

law.




EXECUTIVE ORDER

CONVICTIONS OF PERSONS UNDER SECTION 12 OF THE

MILITARY SELECTIVE SERVICE ACT AND CERTAIN AZJ
DISCHARGES ISSUED BECAUSE OF AND CONVICTIONS FOR
VIOLATIONS OF ARTICLE 85, 86 or 87 OF THE UNIFORM ~
CODE OF MILITARY JUSTICE AND TO MAKE RECOMMENDA-

TIONS FOR EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY WITH RESPECT THERETO

ESTABLISHING A CLEMENCY BOARD TO REVIEW CERTAIN‘///// ﬁy»

By virtue of the authority vested in me as President
of the United States by Secfion 2 of Article II of the
Constitution of the United States, and in the interest
of the internal management of the Government, it is
ordered as follows:

Section 1. There is hereby established a board
of 9 members, which shall be known as the Presidential
Clemency Board. The members of the Board shall be
appointed by the President, who shall also designate
its Chairman.

Sec. 2. The Board, under such regulations as it
may prescribe, shall examine the cases of persons who
apply prior to January 31, 1975, and who (i) have been
convicted of violating Section 12 of the Military Selective

Service Act (50 App. U.S.C. §462), or of any rule or

regulation promulgated pursuant to that section, for

acts committed between August 4, 1964 and March 28, 1973, !

or (ii) have received punitive or undesirable discharges

as a consequence of violations of Articles 85, 86 or 87
of the Uniform Code of Military Justice (10 U.S.C. §§885,
886, 887) that occurred between August 4, 1964 and

March 28, 1973, of are serving sentences of confinement
for such violations. The Board will only consider the
cases of Military Selective Service Act violators who
were convicted of unlawfully failing (i) to register or
register on time, (ii) to keep the local board informed
ogqgggu;urrent address, (iii) to report for or submit to

preinduction or induction examination, (iv) to report for
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or submit to induction itself, or (v) to report for or
submit to or complete alternate service. However, the
Board will not consider the cases of individuals who are
precluded from re-entering the United States under 8 U.S.C.
1182 (a) (22) @7 07w Kanr.

Sec. 3. The Board shall report to the President its
findings and recommendations as to whether Executive Clemency
should be granted or denied in any case. If clemency is recom-
mended, the Board shall also recommend the form tbat such
clemency should take, including clemency conditioned upon a
period of alternate service in the national interest. In the
case of an individual discharged from a military service with

a punitive or undesirable discharge, the Board may recommend

" to the President that a clemency discharge be substituted

for a punitive or undesirableidischarge. béterminafion of
any period of alternate service shall be in accord with the
Proclamation announcing‘a program for the return

of Vietnam era draft evaders and military deserters.

Sec. 4. The Board shall give priority consideration to
those applicants who are presently confined and have-been.
convicted only of an offense set forth in section 2 of this
order, and who have no outstanding criminal charges.

Sec. 5. Each member of the Board, except any member
who then receives other compensation from the United States,
may receive compensation for each day he or she is engaged
upon the work of the Board at not to exceed the daily rate
now or hereafter prescribed by law for persons and positions
in GS-18, as authorized by law (5 U.Ss.C. 3109), and may also
receive travel expenées, including per diem in lieu of sub-
sistence, as authorized by law (5 U.S.C. 5703) for persons in
the government service employed intermittently.

Sec. 6. Necessary expenses of the Board may be paid from
the Unanticipated Personnel Needs Fund of the President or from

such other funds as may be available.
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Sec. 7. Necessary administrative services and support may
be provided the Board by the General Services Administration
on a reimbursable basis,

Sec., 8. All departments and agencies in the Executive
branch are authorized and directed to cooperate with the
Board in its work, and to furnish the Board all appropriate
information and assistance, to the extent permitted by law.

| Sec. 9. The Board shall submit its final recommendations

to the President not later than December 31, 1976, at which

;ime it shall cease to exist.






ks i

ANNOUNCING A PROGRAM FOR THE RETURN OF _
VIETNAM ERA DRAFT EVADERS AND MILITARY DESERTERS

BY THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

A PROCLAMATION o/

The United States withdrew the last of its forces
from the Republic of.Vietnam on March 28, 1973.

In the period of its invﬁlvement in armed hos-
tilities in Southeast Asia, the United States suffered
great losses. Millions served their country, thousands
died in combat, thousands more were wounded, others are
still listed as missing in action.

Over a year after the last American combatant had
left Vietnam, the status of thousands of our countrymen --
convicted, charged, investigatéd or still sdhght for
violations of the Military Selective Service Act or of
the Uniform Code of Military Justice -~ remains unre-
sqlved.

In furtherance of our national commitment to justicé
and mercy these young Americans shbuld have the
chance to contribute a share to the rebuilding of peace

among ourselves and with all nations. They should be

allowed the opportunity to earn return to their country,

their communities, and their families, upon their agree-

ment to a period of alternate service in the national
interest, together with an acknowledgement of their allegiance
to the country and its Constitution.

Desertion in time of war is a méjor, serious offense;
failure to respond to the country's call fér duty is
- ¢lso a serious offense. Reconciliation among our people
does not require that these acts be condoned. Yet,
reconciliation calls for an act of mercy to bind the

Nation's wounds and to heal the scars ol Jdivicivenes:..
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NOW, THEREFORE, I, Gerald R. Ford, President of the

United States, pursuant to my powers under Article II,

Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the Constitution, do hereby_proclaim

a program to commence immediately to afford reconciliation
to Vietnam era draftrevaders and military deserters upon
the following terms and conditions: v

1. Draft Evaders - An individual who allegedly

unlawfully failed under the Military Selective Service

~ Act or any rule or regulation promulgated thereunder,

to register or register on time, to kéep the local
board informed of his current address, to report for or
submit to preinduction or induction examination, to
report for or submit to induction itself, or to report
for or submit to, or complete service under %ection 6(3)
of such Act during the period from August 4, 1964 to

March 28, 1973, inclusive, and who has not been adjudged

‘guilty in a trial for such offense, will be relieved of

prosecution and punishment for such offense if he:
. (i) presents himself to a United States
Attorney before January 31, 1975,
(ii) executes an agreement acknowledging
his allegiance to the United States and
pledging to fulfill a period of alternate
service under the auspices of the Director

of Selective Service, and

(iii) satisfactorily completes such

service. .

‘The alternate service shall promote the national health,

safety, or interest. No draft evader will be given the

'privilege of completing a period of alternate service by

service in the Armed Forces.

However, this program will not apply to an individual
who is precluded from re-entering the United States under
8 U.S.C. 1182(a) (22) or other law. Additionally, if

individuals eligible for this program have other criminal

charges outstanding, their participation in the program
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may be conditioned upon, or postponed until after, final
disposition of the other charges has been reached in

accordance with law. - o B

P

-The period of service shall be twenty-four months,
which may be reduced by the Attorney General because of
_mitigating'éircumstahces.

2. Military Deserters - A member of the armed forces who R

has been administratively classified as a deserter by
- reason of unauthorized absence and whose absence commenced
A during the period from August 4, 1964 to March 28, 1973,
inclusive, will be reiieved of proseéution and punishment
under Articles 85, 86 and 87 of the Uniform Code of Military
Justice for such absence and fot offénses directly related .
thereto if before January 31, 1975 he takes an‘oath of
allegiance to the United States and éxecutes an agree-
ment with the Secretary of the Military Departmeht from
which he absented himself or for members of the Coast Guard,é
with the Secretary of Transportation, pledging to fulfill a '
period of alternate service under the auspices of the |
Difector of Selective Service. The alternate service shall
promote the national health, saféty, or interest. |
The period of service shall be twenty-four months;‘

which may be reduced by the Secretary of the appropriate

ot e PSR AL v e

Military Department, or Secretary of Transportation for

members of the Coast Guard, because of mitigating

circumstances.
However, if a ﬁember of the armed forces has additionai

outstanding charges pending against him under the Uniform

Code of Military Justice, his eligibility to participate

in this program may be conditioned upon, or postponed

until after, final disposition of the additional charges

has been reached in accordance with law.
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Each member of the armed forces who elects to seek
relief through this program will receive an undesirable
discharge. Thereafter, upon_satisfadtory completion of
a period of alternate service prescribed by the Military
Deéartment or Department of Transportation, sdch.ihdividuai
will be entitled to receivé,'in lieu of his undesirable
discharge, a clemency discharge in recognition of his
fulfillment of the requirements of the program. Such
clemency discharge'shall not bestow entitlement to
benefits administered by the Veterans Administration.

Procedures of éhe Military Departments implementing
this Proclamation will be in accordance with guidelines
established by the Secretary of Defense, preseﬁt'Military |
Department regulations notwithstanding.

3. Presidential Clemency Board - By Executive Order

I have this date establishgd a Presidential Clemency
Board which will review the records of individuals

within the following categories: (i) those who_have

been convicted of draft evasion offenses as described
above, (ii) those who have received a punitive or un-
desirable discharge from service in the armed forces for -

having violated Article 85, 86, or 87 of the Uniform Code;

SN
of Military Justice between Augqust 4, 1964 and March 28, H
.l
1973, or are serving sentences of confinement for such h-
3y
1

violations. Where appropriate, the Board may recommend
that clemency be conditioned upon completion of a period i
of alternate service. However, if any clemency discharge
is recommended, such discharge shall not bestow entitle-

ment to benefits administered by the Veterans Administration.

4., Alternate Service - In prescribing the length of

alternate service in individual cases, the Attorney
General, the Secretary of the appropriate Department,
or the Clemency Board shall take into account such

honorable service as an individual may have rendered prior

to his absence, penalties already paid under law, and
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such other mitigating factors as may be appropriate
to seek equity among those who participate in this
program.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
this sixteenth day of September in the year of
our Lord nineteen hundred sevenﬁy-four, and of the
Independence of the United States of America the

one hundred and ninety-ninth.
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EXECUTIVE ORDER

ESTABLISHING A CLEMENCY BOARD TO REVIEW CERTAIN
CONVICTIONS OF PERSONS UNDER SECTION 12 OR 6(3)

OF THE MILITARY SELECTIVE SERVICE ACT AND CERTAIN
DISCHARGES ISSUED BECAUSE OF, AND CERTAIN CONVIC-
TIONS FOR, VIOLATIONS OF ARTICLE 85, 86 or 87 OF
THE UNIFORM CODE OF MILITARY JUSTICE AND TO MAKE
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY WITH RESPECT
THERETO .

By virtue of the authority vested in me as President
of the United States by Section 2 of Article II of the
Constitution of the United States, and in the interest
of the internal management of the Government, it is
ordered as follows:

Section 1. There is hereby established in the
Executive Office of the President a board of 9 members,
which shall be known as the Presidential Clémency Board.
The members of the Board shall be appointed by the
President, who shall also designate its Chairman.

Sec. 2. The Board, under such regulations as it
may prescribe, shall examine the cases of persons who
apply for Executive clemency prior to January 31, 1975,
and who (i) have been convicted of violating Section 12 or
6(j) of the Military Selective Service Act (50 App.
U.S.C. §462), or of any rule or regulation promulgated
pursuant to that section, for acts committed between
August 4, 1964 and March 28, 1973, inclusive, or (ii) have
received punitive or undesirable discharges as a conse-
quence of violations of Article 85, 86 or 87 of the

Uniform Code of Military Justice (10 U.S.C. §§ 885, 886,

887) that occurred between August 4, 1964 and March 28,

1973, inclusive, or are serving sentences of confinement

for such violations. The Board will only consider the
cases of Military Selective Service Act violators who

were convicted or ﬁnlawfully failing (i) to register or
register on time, (ii) to keep the local board informed

of their current address, (iii) to report for or submit

to preinduction or induction examination, (iv) to report for




! of Vietnam era draft evaders and military deserters.

‘ order, and who have no outstanding criminal charges.

2
or sﬁbmit td induction itself, or (v) to report for or
submit to, or complete service under Section 6(j) of
such Act. However, the Board will not consider th?’
cases of individuals who are precluded from re-entering

the United States under 8 U.S.C. 1182(a) (22) or other

" law.

Sec. 3. The'Bqard shall repoft to the President its
findings and recommendations as to whether Executive clemency
should be graﬂted or denied in any case. If clemency is recom- !
mended, the Board shall also recommend the form that such
clemency should také, including clemency conditioned upon a
period of alternate service in the national interest. 1In the
case of an individual discharged from the armed forces with

a punitive or undesirable discharge, the Board may recommend

- to the President that a clemency discharge be substituted

for a punitive or undesirable diséharge. Determination of
any period of alternate service shall be in accord with the

Proclamation announcing a program for the return

Sec. 4. The Board shall give priority consideration to

 those applicants who are presently confined and have been

' convicted only of an offense set forth in section 2 of this;

Sec. 5. Each member of the Board, except any member

]
}
1
,
i
|
|
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f who then receives other compensation from the United States,

may receive compensation for each day he or she is engaged?
upon the work of the Board at not to exceed the daily rate!
now or hereafter prescribed by‘law for persons and positions
in GS~-18, as authoriéed by law (5 U.S.C. 3109), and may also
receive travel expenses, including per diem in lieu of sub-
sistence, as authorized by law (5 U.S.C. 5703) for persons in
the government service employed intermittently.

Sec. 6. Nccegssary eapons=3 of the Be.d may be paid from

~he Uaaunticipated Personnel »Mzedc rund of the President or from

such other funds as r.y we available.
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Sec. 7. Necessary administrative services and support may
be provided the Board by the General Services Administration
on a reimbursable basis.
Sec. 8. All departments and agencies in the Executive
branch are authoiiged and directed to cooperate with the
‘Board in its work, and to furnish -the Board all appropriate
information and assistance, to the extent permitted by law.
Sec. 9. The Board shall.submit its final recommendations
to the President not later than December 31, 1976, at which

time it shall cease to exist.

: THE WHITE HOUSE,

September 16, 1974.
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EXECUTIVE ORDER

DELEGATION OF CERTAIN FUNCTIONS VESTED IN THE
PRESIDENT TO THE DIRECTOR OF SELECTIVE SERVICE

By virtue of the authority vested in me as
President of the Uﬁited States, pursuant to my powers
under Article II, Sections 1, 2 and 3 6f the Constitytion,
énd under Section 301 of Title 3 of the United States
Code, it is hereby ordered as follows:

Section 1. The Director of Selective Service

- is designated and empowered, without the approval,
ratification or other action of the President, under
sucﬁ regulations as he may prescribe, to establish,
implement, and administer the program of altexnate
service authorized in the Proclamation announcing a
progrém for the return of Vietnam era draft evaders
and military deserters.

Sec. 2. Departments and agencies in the Executive
branch shall, upon the request of the Director of
Selective Service, cooperate and_aséist in the im-
plementation or administration of the Director's
duties under this Order, to the extent permitted by

law.

THE WHITE HOUSE,

September 16, 1974.

RETEASUPNAT N TRRE R S e N 1 s
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FACT SHEET

PROGRAM FOR THE RETURN OF VIETNAM ERA .
'DRAFT EVADERS AND MILITARY DESERTERS T

The President has today issued a Proclamation and Executive
Orders establishing a program of clemency for draft evaders
and military deserters to commence immediately. This program
has been formulated to permit these individuals to return to
American society without risking criminal prosecution or in- R
carceration for qualifying offenses if they acknowledge their - T
allegiance to the United States and satisfactorily serve a period
- of alternate civilian service.

The program is designed to conciliate divergent elements of
American society which were polarized by the protracted period -
of conscription necessary to sustain United States activities
in Vietnam. Thus, only those who were delinquent with respect
to required military service between the date of the Tonkin
Gulf Resolution (August 4, 1964) and the date of withdrawal of
United States forces from Vietnam (March 28, 1973) will be
eligible. Further, only the offenses of draft evasion and
prolonged unauthorized absence from military service (referred
to hereinafter as desertion) are covered by the program.

Essential.features of the program are outlined below.

1. Number of Draft Evaders. There are approximately 15,500
draft evaders potentially eligible. Of these some 8,700 have
been convicted of draft evasion. Approximately 4,350 are under
indictment at the present time, of whom some 4,060 are listed
as fugitives. An estimated 3,000 of these are in Canada. A
further 2,250 individuals are under investigation with no pend-
ing 1nd1ctments. It is estimated that approximately 130 persons
are still serving prison sentences for draft evasion.

| .
2. Number of Military Deserters. Desertion, for the purposes
of this program, refers to the status of those members of the
armed forces who absented themselves from military service
without authorization for thirty days or more. During the
Vietnam era it is estimated that there were some 500,000 in-
cidents of desertion as so defined. Of this 500,000 a number
were charged with offenses other than desertion at the time
they absented themselves. These other offenses are not within
the purview of the clemency program for deserters. Approximately
12,500 of the deserters are still at large of whom about 1,500
are in Canada. Some 660 deserters are at present serving sen-
tences to confinement or are awaiting trial under the Uniform
Code of Military Justice.

3. Unconvicted Evader. Draft evaders will report to the U.S.
Attorney for the district in which they allegedly committed
their offense. ,

Draft evaders participating in this program will acknowledge
their allegiance to the United States by agreeing with the
United States Attorney to perform alternate service under
the auspices of the Director of Selective Service.

The duration of alternate service will be 24 months, but may
be reduced for mitigating factors as determined by the
Attorney General.

The Director of Selective Service will have the responsibility
to find alternate service jobs for those who report. Upon
satisfactory completion of the alternate service, the Director
will issue a certificate of satisfactory completion to the
individual and U.S. Attorney, who will either move to dis-
miss the indictment if one is outstanding, or agree not to

" press possible charges in cases where an indictment has not
been returned.
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If the draft evader fails to perform the agreed term of alternate
service, the U.S. Attorney will be free to, and in normal circum-
stances will, resume prosecution of the case as provided in the
terms of the agreement.

Aliens who fled the country to evade the draft will be ineligible
to participate in the program.

4. Unconvicted Military Absentees. Military absentees who have
no other pending charges may elect to part1c1pate in the program
Military deserters may seek instructions by writing to:

(a). ARMY - U.S. Army Deserter Information Point,
Fort Benjamin Harrison, Indiana 46216

(b). NAVY - Chief of Naval Personnel, (Pers 83),
Department of the Navy, Washington, D.C. 20370 p

(c). AIR FORCE - U.S. Air Force Deserter Information
' Point, (AFMDC/DPMAK) Randolph Air Force Base,
Texas 78148

(d) . MARINE CORPS - Headquarters, U.S. Marine Corps, (MC)
Washington, D.C. 20380

Those who make such an election will be required to execute a |
reaffirmation of allegiance and pledge to perform a period of '
alternate civilian service. Those against whom other charges under

the Uniform Code of Military Justice are pending will not be eli-~-

gible to participate in the program until these other charges are

disposed of in accordance with the law. Participants in the pro-

gram will be separated with an undesirable dlscharge. Although
these discharges will not be coded on their face in any manner,
the Veterans Administration will be advised that the recipients
wereldlscharged for willful and persistent unauthorized absence.
They will thus not be eligible for any benefits provided by the
Veterans Administration. :

The length of required alternate civilian service will be
determined by the parent Services for each individual on a case-
by-case basis. The length of service will be 24 months, but may
be reduced for military service already completed or for other
mitigating factors as determined by the parent Service. After
being discharged each individual will be referred to the

Director of Selective Service for assignment to prescribed :
work. Upon certification that this work has been satis- i
factorily completed, the individual may submit the certification |
to his former Service. The Service will then issue a special new,
type of discharge -- a Clemency Discharge -- which will be sub-
stituted for the previously awarded undesirable discharge.
However, the Clemency Discharge shall not bestow entitlement

to benefits administered by the Veterans Administration.

5. Alternate Civilian Service. Determining factors in selecting
suitable alternate service jobs will be:

(a) National Health, Safety or Interest.

(b) Noninterference with the competitive labor market. The
applicant cannot be assigned to a job for which there are
more numerous qualified applicants than jobs available.

- (c) Compensation. The compensation will provide a standard
of living to the applicant reasonably comparable to the
standard of living the same man would enjoy if he were
entering the military service.
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(d) Skill and talent utilization. Where possible, an
applicant may utilize his special skills.

In prescribing the length of alternate service in individual
cases, the Attorney General, the Military Department, or the
Clemency Board shall take into account such honorable service
as an individual may have rendered prior to his absence,
penalties already paid under the law, and such other mitigating
factors as may be appropriate to seek equity among participants
in the program.

6. No Grace Period. There will not be a grace period for those
outside the country to return and negotiate for clemency with the
option of again fleeing the jurisdiction. All those eligible for
the program and who have no additional criminal charges outstanding
who re-enter the United States will have fifteen days to report
to.the appropriate authority from the date of their re-entry.
However, this fifteen day period shall not extend the final date

of reporting of January 31, 1975 as set forth in the Proclamation.

7. Inquiries. Telephone inquiries may be made to. the following
authorities: '

Evaders: Department of Justice: (202) 739-4281

Military Absentees: U.S. Navy: - (202) 694-2007
. (202) 694-1936

U.S. Marine Corps: (703) 694-8926
U.S. Army: © - (317) 542-2722
(317) 542-2791
(317) 542-2482

U.S. Air Force: (512) 652-4104

U.S. Coast Guard: (202) 426-1830
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FACT SHEET

PRESIDENTIAL CLEMENCY BOARD

The President has today established by Executive Order a
nine member Presidential Clemency Board. The Board will
review the records of two kinds of applicants. First, those
who have been convicted of a draft evasion offense committed
between August 4, 1964 and March 28, 1973, inclusive. Second,
those who received a punitive or undesirable discharge from
the armed forces because of a military absentee offense com-
mitted during the Vietnam era or are serving sentences of
confinement for such violations. The Board will recommend
clemency to the President on a case-by-case basis. In the
absence of aggravating factors, the Clemency Board would be
expected to recommend clemency.

When appropriate, the Board could recommend clemency conditioned
upon the performance of some alternate service. In the case of
a military absentee, the Board could also recommend that a

clemency discharge be substituted for a punitive or undesirable
discharge.

The Board has been instructed to give priority consideration to
individuals currently confined. The President has also asked
that their confinement be suspended as soon as p0551ble,
pending the Board's review.

The Board will consider the cases only of persons who apply be-

fore January 31, 1975. It is expected to complete its work not
later than December 31, 1976,




FACT SHEET

PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED

DRAFT- EVADER

Report to United States Attorney
where offense was committed

Acknowledge allegiance to the

United States by agreeing with the

United States Attorney to perform

24 months alternate service or less
~ based on mitigating circumstances

Perform alternate service under
the auspices of the Director of
Selective Service

Director of Selective Service
issues certificate of satis-
factory completion of alter-
nate service :

Receipt by United States Attorney
of a certificate of satisfactory
completion of alternate service

" Dismissal of indictment or
~dropping of charges

- UNCONVICTED DRAFT EVADER AND MILITARY ABSENTEE - o

MILITARY ABSENTEE ;
(including Coast Guard)

Report as prescribed by

- the military department

concerned or for members

.of the Coast Guard report

to the Secretary of
Transportation

- Oath of Allegiance to

United States

Agree with the concerned
Military Department to
perform 24 months alternate
service or less based

upon mitigating
circumstances

-

Upon request, Military
Department forgoes prose-
cution, and issues :
undesirable discharge

Perform alternate service
under the auspices of the
Director of Selective
Service :

Director of Selective Service
issues certificate of satis-
factory completion of alter-

nate service !

l

1

Receipt of a certificate of
satisfactory completion of
alternate service by the
concerned Military Department

Clemency discharge substituted

for undesirable discharge
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CONVICTED DRAFT EVADER AND MILITARY ABSENTEE

DRAFT EVADER

Apply to Clemency Board

Clemency Board may recommend
clemency to the President

Clemency Board may condition
recommendation of clemency on
period of alternate service

President may grant clemency

MILITARY ABSENTEE
(including Coast Guard)

Apply to Clemency Board

Clemency Board may recommend
clemency to the President,
including substitution of

a clemency discharge for a
punitive or undesirable
discharge

Clemency Board may condition
recommendation of clemency on
period of alternate service

President may grant clemency,
including substitution of a
clemency discharge for a
punitive or undesirable
discharge






